THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on June 7, 2001 at 7:00 P.M. in the
Fayette County Adminigrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Public Meeting Room, First Floor,
Fayetteville, Georgia

MEMBERS PRESENT: Fred Bowen, Chairman
Bill Beckwith, Vice-Chairman
Al Gilbert
Bob Harbison
Jm Graw

MEMBERS ABSENT: None
STAFF PRESENT: Dennis Davenport, Assstant County Attorney
Kathy Zatler, Director of Zoning/Zoning Adminigtrator

Ron Samons, County Engineer  (Left 8:00 P.M.)
Robyn S. Wilson, P.C. Secretary/Zoning Coordinator

Welcome and Call to Order:

Chairman Bowen cdled the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. He introduced the Board
Members and Staff.

* k k k k k x % x %

1. Consider ation of the Minutes of the meeting held on May 3, 2001.

Chairman Bowen asked the Board Members if they had any comments or changes to the Minutes as
circulated. Bob Harbison made the motion to approvethe Minutes. Al Gilbert seconded themotion. The
motion unanimoudy passed 5-0.

* k k k k k x %k x %

2. Consider ation of the Workshop Minutes of the meeting held on May 17, 2001.

Chairman Bowen asked the Board Members if they had any comments or changes to the Workshop
Minutes as circulated. Al Gilbert made a motion to approve the Workshop Minutes. Bill Beckwith
seconded the motion. The motion unanimoudly passed 5-0.

* k k k k k x %k x %

Kathy Zeitler explained the procedures that would be followed including the fifteen (15) minute time
limitation for presentation and opposition for petitions.

THEFOLLOWINGITEM (S)WILL BECONSIDERED BY THEPLANNINGCOMMISSION
ON JUNE 7, 2001 AND BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON JUNE 28, 2001.

3. Consideration of Petition No. 1081-01, Mary C. Kartos, Owner, and Sarran M ar shall of
SprintCom. Inc., Co-L ocation Agent, and Crown Castle, Inc., Tower Owner, request to
rezone 127 acresfrom A-R Conditional to A-R Conditional to increase the height of the
existing 180 foot M onopole Telecommunications Tower to 190 feet. This property is
located in Land Lot 45 of the 5" District, fronts on Morgan Road, and is zoned A-R.

Attorney James Ney representing SprintCom requesting a rezoning from A-R Conditional to A-R
Conditiond. He said he was not seeking a change to the zoning classfication but a change of one (1)
conditionwhichlimitsthe height of the existing tower to 180 feet. He commented he was seeking toraise
the height to 190 feet to dlow SprintCom to co-locate at this height. He noted that



Page 2
June 7, 2001

thiswould avoid the prospect of building an additiona tower and istotdly inkeeping with Fayette County’s
expressed policy of encouraging co-location. He confirmed that the exigting tower is Sitting way back in
thewoods and is located on 127 acres onMorgan Road whichismostly agrave road. He remarked that
the property was owned by Mrs. Kartos but the existing tower is leased by Crown Castle.

Attorney Ney confirmed that the conditiona zoning was approved in1998 which provided for ahaght limit
of 180 feet plusa 15 foot lightening rod. He stated that SprintCom is seeking to increase the height limit
to 190 feet plusa 9 foot lightening rod. He noted that the additiond heght would enable SprintCom to
meet their coverage needs in the area and supply wireless telecommunication services.

Attorney Ney presented a propagation map whichindicated a coverage gap inthe area. He explained that
acoverage gap could result in adropped or terminated cdl or the inability to make or receive cdls. He
then presented radio frequency projections which showed how the coverage gap became covered withthe
proposed 190 foot antenna.

Attorney Ney referenced the Section 5-40. of the Zoning Ordinance whichrecommendsand encourages
shared use of exiging towersfor co-location. He confirmed that the tower (at 190 feet) and lightening rod
(9 feet) would total 199 feet in height which would not be required to be lit per F.A.A. standards.

Attorney Ney noted that the Staff recommendsapproval of therequest. Hereported that the Staff Andlysis
acknowledged that the proposed request for co-location is generdly a permitted use, with the exception
of the condition imposed to limit to height of the tower to 180 feet. He confirmed that Staff had aso
reviewed the setback requirements gpplicable to the Ste and the tower facility complies with those
requirements. He referenced page 1-4. of the Staff Andyss which indicates that the proposed request
complieswith al of the required factors.

Attorney Ney reported that the property is heavily wooded with dense vegetationwiththe exceptionof one
(1) dearing to accommodate a large transmisson line. He presented photographs showing the dense
vegetation on and around the subject site. He pointed out that due to the great setback distancesthat the
subject Steisrather isolated which reduces the visud obtrusiveness of the entire Site and the surrounding
area. He said that the dense wooded vegetation of the subject property acts as anatural barrier to soften
the effects of the tower.

Attorney Ney commented that the request may seem minor, however it is very important to SprintCom
because it would engble them to provide coverageto thisarea. He confirmed that the request complies
withthe specific requirements and goas and intent of the ordinance. He respectfully requested afavorable
recommendation. He added that Sarran Marshal of SprintCom was a so present and available to answer
any questions.

Chairman Bowen asked if there was anyone to speek in favor of the petition. Hearing none, he asked if
there was anyone to speak in oppositionof the petition. Hearing none and with no rebuttd, he closed the
floor from public comments.

Al Gilbert made the motionto approve the petition subject to the following condition: The monopole tower
shdl be limited to 190 feet in height plus a9 foot lightening rod totaling199 feet. Bob Harbison seconded
the mation.

Jm Graw asked how many carriers were located on the existing tower.
Attorney Ney replied that he had seentwo (2) antenna arrays when he visited the tower facility today. He

sad that Powertel and another carrier were uiilizing the tower and that SprintCom would be the third
carrier.



Page 3
June 7, 2001
Mr. Graw said the tower should be constructed to accommodate three (3) carriers.

Attorney Ney replied that the tower was owned by Crown Castle and it appeared that the current carriers
were located at 170 feet and 180 feet approximately.

Mr. Graw asked why an additional 10 feet was necessary.

Attorney Ney replied that coverage at 160 feet is inadequate but the radio frequency engineers have
satisfied themselves that 190 feet would cover the coverage gap. He advised that agap of 10 to 12 feet
is required between antenna arrays.

Mr. Graw asked how many carriers could be located on the tower.

Attorney Ney replied that only Crown Castle could answer that question.

Mr. Graw asked if a9 foot lightening rod is sufficdent sncea 15 foot lightening rod had been requested by
the previous applicant.

Attorney Ney replied that 9 feet will take care of their needs and be safe, however 15 feet is better but
SprintCom is trying to accommodate the lighting Stuation.

Mr. Graw asked if the owner would be coming back later to ask for additiond height.

Attorney Ney replied that he could not speak for Crown Castle, however the motion on the floor would
require a public hearing to increase the height limitation.

Bill Beckwith referenced the comments from the Falcon Feld Airport Manager recommending that any
tower over 120 feet be lighted for safety purposes.

Attorney Ney replied he had read the Airport Manager’s comments and said he had dedlt with other
counties where they required that towers under 200 feet be lighted, however most pilots argue that thisis
confusing because they think they are up higher than they actudly are, due to the lighted tower being under
200 feet. He added that lighting the tower may aso create objections from citizens in the community.
Mr. Graw asked how the lighting of atower was regulated.

Kathy Zeitler advised that lighting was per F.A.A. requirements.

At thistime, Chairman Bowen cdled for the vote. The motion unanimoudy passed 5-0.

Chairman Bowen gtated that the request was well presented, promoted co-location, and would serve to
minimize the number of towers in the County.

* k k k k k x *x x %

4. Consider ation of proposedamendments tothe Fayette County Development Regulations
regarding Article VI. Tree Retention, Protection, and Replacement by the Enginegring
Department. (Tabled from the 05/03/01 Public Hearing.)

ChairmanBoweninformed the audience that this item had been discussed numerous timesand expert input
had been received and considered.

County Engineer Ron Salmons advised that the proposed ordinance reflects the changes discussed a the
previous workshop which are indicated on page 14. He confirmed that the perimeter buffer



Page 4
June 7, 2001

had been reduced from 50 feet to 25 feet. He noted that a waiver of the perimeter buffer where it is
adjacent toundevel oped property was added. Hereported that dueto the addition of the section regarding
awaiver of the perimeter buffer, the section deding with the issuance of ajoint timbering permit had been
deleted snceit was redundant. He added that in regard to thinning, the elimination of marking seed trees
had been diminated. He further added that a time limitation of one (1) year had been established for
timbering permits.

Chairman Bowen advised the audience that the P.C. had hdd a public hearing on the proposed
amendments but tabled their vote until tonight. He said that typicaly therewould not be discusson at this
public hearing, however he opened the floor to technicd input and comments.

Scott Jones of the Georgia Forestry Association asked if therewasa definition of developed property as
referenced on page 14, paragraph C. He remarked that developed property could be interpreted to be
ashopping mdl, apaved area, aresdentia subdivison, ahoney camp, clearing, or atraller parked on the
property. He said Section C. dso gives al of the power to the Director of Engineering to waive the
requirement for a buffer on part or dl of the perimeter of the timber stand whichopens up the requirement
for abuse. He remarked that he agreed with a time limit on the timbering permit but there should be a
provisonfor anextensionor increasethe permit to cover two (2) years due to the time frame fromthe point
of sdeto the point of harvesting the timber and brought to market usualy extends over one (1) year.

Julie Matuliacommented thet dlowing awaiver by the Director of Engineering could open up the County
for alawsuit.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Bowen closed the floor from public comments.

Mr. Samons explained that devel oped property would be property which contained aresidence, isin a
resdential subdivison, or a resdentia area next to a timbering stand, however an agricultural use or a
timbering use would be an undeveloped property.

Kathy Zeitler confirmed that the Zoning Department would view developed property as any kind of use
on the property, other than conservation use which is a tax break. She added that there could be a
structure or some type of use.

Bill Beckwith asked if thiswould aso gpply to arecreationd area such asabdlfidd.

Mrs. Zeitler replied yes because a bdlfield is arecreationd use of property.

Bob Harbison stated it was his intention for developed property to mean within a platted residentia or
nonresidential subdivison. He pointed out that if there was ahouse on 150 acresthat the 150 acreswould

be considered to be developed.

Chairman Bowen asked Mrs. Zeitler to repeat her definition of developed property.

Mrs. Zeitler reiterated that where there is aland use on property with the exception of conservation use,

whether there is a structure on the property or not. She confirmed that a use could be recreational,

industrid, resdentid, commercid, or office.

Mr. Harbison replied that thiswasnot hisintent. He suggested that the language be changed to “a platted
subdivison”.

Jm Graw asked Mrs. Zetler what would be the one thing to dlow awaiver.

Mrs. Zeitler replied if the property was vacant, undeveloped asin conservation.



Page 5
June 7, 2001

Mr. Harbisonreplied that it was hisintent to protect residential and nonresidentia platted subdivisons. He
suggested to waive dl A-R except platted subdivisons.

Chairman Bowen asked if there isa definition of agricultura use.

Mrs. Zeitler advised that the Zoning Ordinance defined bona-fide agricultura uses asthe raising of crops
and livestock, etc.

Attorney Davenport suggested to add the following wording:  For the purposes of this section,
undevel oped property shdl indude an active farming operationand land placed under conservationusefor
tax purposes.

Mr. Harbison stated he wanted to ensure that there are not aesthetic impacts.

Chairman Bowen stated the other concern was the time limitation of the timbering permit. He remarked
that he had no problem with increasing the limit from one (1) year to two (2) years.

The P.C. concurred with the proposed changes as discussed.
Jm Graw made the motion to approve the proposed amendments subject to the following changes.

Section 8-185.C. Wherethe timber stand to be harvested is adjacent to undevel oped property, the
Director of Enginesring shdl waive the requirement for a buffer onpart or dl of the
perimeter of the timber stand. All buffer waiver requests will be included in the
timber harvesting plan and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.  For the
purposes of this section, undeveloped property shal include an active farming
operation and land placed under conservation use for tax purposes.

Section 8-185.G. Thetimber harvesting permit shdl expire two (2) years fromthe date of issuance.

Bill Beckwith seconded the motion. He stated that the publicinput and public interest had been very helpful
in the development of the proposed amendments. He aso thanked Mr. Sdmonsfor al of his hard work.

* k k k k k x %k x %

5. Consider ation of proposedamendmentstothe Fayette County Development Regulations
regarding Articlel1. Nonresidential Construction; Approval and Compliance, Section 8-
26. Site Plans by the Zoning Department.

Kathy Zetler advisedthat Staff was proposing an exemptionof the requirement for aSite Planfor achange
of use, provided it met dl of the proposed criteria. She explained that for example ashopping center could
have a change intenant of minor square footage, and the use is not more intengve than the use previoudy
located there, however it is a change of use. She said that in this case, the current ordinance requires
submittal and approva of asiteplanfor the new use. She explained that if the proposed criteriais met, the
Zoning Adminigtrator could grant a waiver of the Ste plan requirement to dlow a tenant to be issued a
business license without firg having to go through a revised ste plan approval process. She noted the
proposed criteria included: no additiond building square footage is proposed for the new use, the
proposed use is a permitted use not a conditiona use, the proposed useissmilar or alessintensve use
than the last authorized use, thresholds for water use, septic system, etc. are Smilar or lessintensive than
the last authorized use, the site complieswith al minimum parking requirements for the proposed use and
dl other exising uses onthe site, the Steisincompliancewithdl conditions of gpproval, and site/landscape
gandards. She added that the waiver of a Site plan would not exempt any other requirements such



Page 6
June 7, 2001
as required permits and ingpections.

Chairman Bowen opened the floor for public comments. Hearing none, he closed the floor from public
comments.

Al Gilbert made amotionto approve the proposed amendments. Bob Harbison seconded the motion and
commended Mrs. Zeitler for her recommendations and said that if dl of the regulations were reviewed this
closdly tha anything not absolutely necessary could be diminated.

Chairman Bowen concurred with Mr. Harbison.

The motion unanimoudy passed 5-0.

* k k k k k k k k%

6. Consderation of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance
regarding Article VI. Digtrict Use Requirements by the Zoning Department:

6-17. O-l Office Institutional District, Section E. Dimensional Requirements, 9. Lot
cover age limit, indluding structur e and parking ar ea: sixty per cent (60%) of total ot ar ea

6-18. C-C Community Commercial District, Section D. Dimensional Requirements, 9.
L ot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: sixty percent (60%) of total lot
area

6-19. C-H Highway Commercial District Section D. Dimensional Requirements, 9. Lot
cover age limit, induding structur e and parking ar ea: sixty per cent (60% ) of total lot ar ea

6-20. L-C Limited Commercial Digtrict Section E. Dimensional Requirements, 9. Lot
cover age limit, indluding structur e and parking ar ea: sixty per cent (60%) of total lot ar ea

Kathy Zeitler explained that currently there are no redtrictions onthe amount of impervious surfacesin an
office zoning didrict or commercid zoning didtrict. She advised that there is dready alot coverage limit
of seventy percent (70%) inindustrid zoning districts. She confirmed that the proposed amendments serve
to establish a maximum lot coverage limit of sixty percent (60%) of the total lot area which includes
buildings and paved areas such as parking lots. She added that 60% is congstent with the standards of
other jurisdictions, such asthe City of Fayetteville.

Bill Beckwith asked if the proposal had been tested by usng the required parking spaces required by
various uses.

Mrs. Zatler replied that the minimum lot size for nonresidentid is one (1) acre or more. She advised that
the parking requirements have aso been reduced and are mainly calculated on square footage for the
proposed use. She stated that usudly the range fell between 45% to 55%.

Chairman Bowen opened the floor for public comments.

Julie Matulia commended Kathy Zetler on reducing the required number of parking spaces and for
attempting to reduce the amount of impervious surfaces. She read the following article: Aswe build and
replace our natura landscape with streets, parking lots, and other impervious surfaces, as the amount of
impervious surface within a watershed grows, stream beds are widened, flooding is increased, and
groundwater rechargeis reduced. Asthe amount of impervious surfacewith a watershed rises above 10
percent, impacts on local water bodies are significant, beyond 30 percent



Page 7
June 7, 2001

they are quite damaging. Mogt runoff from urban aressis the leading source of damage to estuaries and
the third largest source of water qudity damage to lakes. Runoff can be reduced through clustering of
development or open space development. Asseeninthe past hdf century, devel opment hasbeen winning
thosebattles. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife service reports that urban and suburban devel opment accounted
for 21 percent of total net wetland lossesin the last decade. Loss of open space impact the environment
in many ways induding our hedth. Fayette County isgtill mostly rurd, thisisthe future of Fayette County.
At present we have not lost our wetlands or forest. Development and open space protection can coexist.
| would like to point out that the prognosisis redly alittle blesker than some people may think. We are
deding with ar pollution inaggnificant way aswell as water pollution. There are many concernsthat are
due to the erosion and ratification of our green space.

Ms. Matuliarequested the P.C. to table the proposed amendments until additiona research hasbeendone
to include how the nitrogenoxide, carbon monoxide, and the vol atile organic compounds released into the
ar eachyear canbereduced by one (1) tree. She aso requested the P.C. to talk with Gregory Crawford
who is associated with the E.P.A. about coal cities. She explained that the maintenance of green space
and impervious surfaces dong withwatershed protection hepsto keep the temperatures of our city lower.
She noted that there was sgnificant informationwhichhad not been uncovered and researched beforethese
proposals were presented. She disagreed with the sixty percent (60%) limit of impervious being amilar
with other areas. She remarked that the City of Peachtree City has nowhere near sixty percent (60%)
impervious surfaces but only has twenty percent (20%). She commented that Peachtree City has been
cdled the Magic Kingdom. She said it was the best place she hasever lived and she hated to leave it. At
present, she went on to say that Fayette County has less then 3.5% green space and has beengivenover
$700,000.00 thismonth by the Federd government to purchase greenspace but withthe cost of land, we
will be lucky to get any of any sgnificance. She pointed out that with the growth in Fayette County that
an amendment so significant to the qudity of life and arurd attractiveness can be so quickly approved.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Bowen closed the floor from public comments.

Al Gilbert stressed that currently someone could develop 100% impervious surfaces and 60% is 40%
better than what is on the books today. He said the County needed to proceed and that it could be
reviewed in the future. He noted that this was a step in greatly improving what can happen tomorrow
without an ordinance in place.

Al Gilbert made the motion to gpprove the proposed amendments. Jm Graw seconded the motion. He
concurred with Mr. Gilbert’s comments.

Chairman Bowen said that the County has been very concerned over the past several years about water
runoff and impervious surfaces and the County must move quickly to establishsome limitsand protect what
we have now. He added that this would not be the last time that thisissue would be discussed.

Bob Harbison asked Ms. Matuliato provide a copy of her material to the Secretary so it could be made
apart of the permanent Minutes.

At thistime, Chairman Bowen cdled for the vote. The motion unanimoudy passed 5-0.

Chairman Bowen thanked the public for their comments and added that the comments had not gone
unnoticed.

* k k k k k x *x x %

7. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance
regarding Article VI. Didgtrict Use Requirements, Section 6-19. C-H Highway
Commercial Didtrict, B. Permitted Uses, 57. Mini-Storage Facility with a unit floor




Page 8
June 7, 2001

space not to exceed 425 quare feet, deleteand insert into C. Conditional Uses, 17. Sdlf-
Storage Facility. Renumber remaining conditional uses by the Zoning Depar tment.

Kathy Zetler explained that currently a self-storage facility is apermitted usein C-H and she proposed
to revise the sdf-gorage fadility use from a permitted use to a conditiona use. She pointed out that the
proposed conditions addressed maximum size of a storage bay, orientation of the storage bay doors,
parking and dirculation, storage of vehicles and boats, screening requirements, accessory uses, outdoor
lighting, and loudspeskers and paging equipment.

Chairman Bowen opened the floor for public comments.

Julie Matulia stated that recently a storage facility had been approved withlittle discussonjust outsde the
city limits of Fayetteville. She said that architectural design, integrity, and impervious surfaces were
compromised. She asked if any of these conditions would aso gpply to the recently gpproved storage
fadlity. She aso asked if there was any discussion regarding the dimination of storage facilities in a
commercid zone.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Bowen closad the floor from public comments.

Ms. Zeitler explained that the rezoning which Ms. Matulia was referring to was approved with many
conditions which included all of the proposed conditions. She added that they were bound by those
conditions and could not vary them. She advised that asaconditiona usedl of the conditions are required
to be met and cannot be varied, otherwise the Site plan is not approved.

Bill Beckwith asked if any combination of a privacy fence, berm, and vegetation could be used for
screening.

Ms. Zeitler replied that al three (3) are not required, however a combinationcan be utilized, Smilar tothe
requirements for a buffer.

Chairman Bowen asked if it was achoice.

Ms. Zeitler replied yes aslong asit provides adequate screening.

Bob Harbison suggested that the requirement state one or a combination of the following.

Attorney Davenport suggested the fallowing: Storage of vehiclesand boats shdl be located inthe rear yard
only and be screened fromview from adjacent residentia areas and public roads with any combination of
privacy fence and/or berm, and vegetation.

The P.C. concurred.

Bob Harbison made the motion to approve the proposed amendments. Bill Beckwith seconded the
motion. The motion unanimoudy passed 5-0.

* k k k k k k k k%

8. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance
regarding Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and M odifications, Section 7-1..B.
Conditional Uses Allowed, 34. Sdlf-Storage Facility. Renumber remaining conditional
uses. Presented by the Zoning Department.

Kathy Zeitler explained that items 7. and 8. had been discussed together.

Chairman Bowen opened the floor for public comments.



Page 9
June 7, 2001

Julie Matuliaasked if there was any discussion about removing a self-storage facility from the C-H zoning
didrict Snceit was an indudirid use.

Ms. Zeaitler advised that a sdlf-storage facility was currently a permitted useinanindugtriad zoning didtrict,
however the proposd isto change a self-storage fadility froma permitted use to a conditiond use in the C-
H zoning didrict. She added that by moving the use from a permitted use to a conditiond use dl of the
proposed conditions would have to be met for the use to be located in C-H.

Bob Harbison made a motionto approve the proposed amendmentswiththe revised verbiage in condition
e. Al Gilbert seconded the motion. The motion unanimoudy passed 5-0.

* k k k k k k k *x %

Chairman Bowen asked if there was any further business.

Kathy Zetler reminded the P.C. of the Workshop scheduledfor June 21, 2001 in Suite 202A at 7:00 P.M.
She advised that the Enginearing Department and the Planning Department would have items for discussion.

Chairman Bowen announced that this would be his last time to chair a public meeting. He stated that he
had served on the P.C. for five (5) years. He said he remembered leaving the Olympics where he held
tickets to key eventsto be a the P.C. meetings. Heremarked that it had been awonderful five (5) years.
He stressed that Fayette County was an outstanding county and he was privileged to have lived in the
county and be a part of the governmentd process. He commented that he would treasure dmost al of
those times since there clearly had beentimeswhenit was not funfor anyone. He added that the P.C. had
gone about things in an objective manner and their hearts had been in the right place even though they had
agreed and disagreed many times but they had aways respected one another’ s opinions. He went on to
say that the P.C. had listened to input fromthe public and it was amazing how you could prepare yoursalf
for these meetings, after you read the Staff Report and looked at the property, and thought about the
position you would take, and then at the public hearing the public input was critica and provided new
informationand changed your thoughts. He thanked the County for putting up with him and his colleagues.
He sad that his fdlow P.C. members were wonderful people and he was thankful to be associated with
them. Hewished the P.C. his best.

Bill Beckwith stated that Mr. Bowen had been a gentlemen and a very professonal member of the P.C.
and the entire P.C. was pleased to work with him. He presented Mr. Bowen with a Certificate of
Appreciation.

Mr. Bowen commented that it was wonderful and thanked the entire P.C.

Bob Harbison remarked that it had been a pleasure serving withMr. Bowen, especidly since he brought
adifferent perspective and was very hdpful in forming a lot of ordinances. He thanked Mr. Bowen for
everything he had done.

There being no further business, Jm Graw made the motion to adjourn the medting. Bob Harbison
seconded the mation. The motion for adjournment unanimoudy passed 5-0. The medting adjourned at
8:25 P.M.



Page 10
June 7, 2001

ATTEST:

PLANNING COMMISSION

OF

FAYETTE COUNTY

ROBYN S. WILSON
SECRETARY

FRED BOWEN
CHAIRMAN



